
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded

Agenda compiled by:
Guy Close
Scrutiny Support Unit
Tel: 39 50878

Principal Scrutiny Adviser:
Steven Courtney
Tel: 24 74707

Produced on Recycled Paper

A

SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES, PUBLIC HEALTH, 
NHS)

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Friday, 29th April, 2016 at 9.00 am

(Please note that there will be no pre-meeting)

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

 C Anderson - Adel and Wharfedale;
B Flynn - Adel and Wharfedale;

P Gruen (Chair) - Cross Gates and Whinmoor;
A Hussain - Gipton and Harehills;
G Hussain - Roundhay;

S Lay - Otley and Yeadon;
C Macniven - Roundhay;

B Selby - Killingbeck and Seacroft;
A Smart - Armley;
E Taylor - Chapel Allerton;
S Varley - Morley South;

Co-opted Member (Non-voting)

Dr J Beal - Healthwatch Leeds
Mr R Taylor - Healthwatch Leeds

Public Document Pack



B

A G E N D A

Item
No

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

1  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded).

(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting).

2  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which 
officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the 
officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following 
resolution:-

RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:

No exempt items have been identified.



Item
No

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

C

3  LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration.

(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.)

4  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

5  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES

To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes.

6  DELIVERING THE BETTER LIVES STRATEGY 
IN LEEDS: PROPOSED NEXT STEPS - DRAFT 
RESPONSE TO THE PROPOSED CLOSURE OF 
THE GREEN

To consider a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development presenting a draft Scrutiny 
Board response to the proposed closure of The 
Green.

1 - 36

7  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Wednesday, 18 May 2016 at 9.30am



Item
No

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

D

THIRD PARTY RECORDING

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable 
those not present to see or hear the proceedings 
either as they take place (or later) and to enable 
the reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the 
recording protocol is available from the contacts on 
the front of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties – code of 
practice

a) Any published recording should be 
accompanied by a statement of when and 
where the recording was made, the context 
of the discussion that took place, and a 
clear identification of the main speakers 
and their role or title.

b) Those making recordings must not edit the 
recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of 
the proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be no 
internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and end 
at any point but the material between those 
points must be complete.



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development

Report to Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Services, Public Health, NHS)

Date: 29 April 2016

Subject: DELIVERINGTHE BETTER LIVES STRATEGY IN LEEDS: PROPOSED NEXT 
STEPS – DRAFT RESPONSE TO THE PROPOSED CLOSURE OF THE GREEN

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

1. Purpose of this report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present a draft Scrutiny Board response to the 
proposed closure of The Green.

2. Main issues

2.1 Following a viability review in July 2015, that concluded no other formal service 
reconfiguration could deliver the projected revenue budget savings of £2.186M, The 
Green formed part of the proposed ‘next steps’ in delivering the Council’s Better 
Lives Strategy presented and considered by the Executive Board in September 2015.   

2.2 The projected level of revenue budget savings were calculated based on purchasing 
services of ‘comparable quality’ from the independent sector using actual occupancy 
/ take-up of services across residential and day care services.  The projected savings 
were estimated to be generated from residential care savings of £1.618M and day 
care savings of £0.568M.  

2.3 A further summary of the projected residential care budget savings is provided below:

Care Home Capacity Occupancy * Projected savings
The Green 37 beds 20 (54%) £489,290
Seigen Manor 30 beds 19 (63%) £569,992
Middlecross 32 beds 22 (69%) £558,696

Totals 99 beds 61 (62%) £1,617,978
* Actual permanent occupancy (as at 5/6/15)

Report author:  Steven Courtney
Tel:  247 4707

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



2.4 Part of the Executive Board’s decision at that meeting was, ‘To begin consultation on 
the recommended proposals to decommission the three remaining care homes 
(Middlecross, Siegen Manor and The Green) and associated day centres…’

2.5 A 12-week period of consultation took place from 1st October to 23rd December 
2015 with service users and their families and carers as well as staff working at The 
Green Care Home.

2.6 In January 2016, the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Services, Public Health, NHS) 
received a petition/ request for scrutiny to ‘…stop the closure of The Green Home for 
Older People’. 

2.7 The request for scrutiny was formally considered by the Scrutiny Board at its meeting 
on 27 January 2016, where the Scrutiny Board agreed to consider the issues raised 
and examine the matter in more detail, through a working group of the Scrutiny 
Board.  To help facilitate the attendance of the lead petitioner, a working group 
meeting was held on 16 March 2016.  

2.8 Following on from the working group meeting and the provision of some further 
information, an initial draft response was considered by the Scrutiny Board at its 
meeting on 19 April 2016.  At that meeting, the Scrutiny Board received comments 
on the initial draft response from the Executive Board Member for Health, Wellbeing 
and Adults and the Director of Adult Social Services.  Members of the Scrutiny Board 
also highlighted additional comments.

2.9 It was agreed to reflect on the comments made and provide a further draft response   
for consideration and agreement by the Scrutiny Board.  The amended draft 
response is appended to this report for consideration.

3. RecommendationsMembers are asked to consider and agree the attached draft 
response, incorporating any agreed amendments.  

4. Background papers1 

4.1 None used

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 2



SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES, PUBLIC HEALTH, NHS)

DELIVERINGTHE BETTER LIVES STRATEGY IN LEEDS:
PROPOSED NEXT STEPS

RESPONSE TO THE PROPOSED CLOSURE OF THE GREEN

Introduction
1. Following a viability review in July 2015, that concluded no other formal service 

reconfiguration could deliver the projected savings of £2.186M, The Green formed part of 
the proposed ‘next steps’ in delivering the Council’s Better Lives Strategy presented and 
considered by the Executive Board in September 2015.   

2. The projected level of revenue budget savings were calculated based on purchasing 
services of ‘comparable quality’ from the independent sector using actual occupancy / 
take-up of services across residential and day care services.  The projected savings were 
estimated to be generated from residential care savings of £1.618M and day care 
savings of £0.568M.  

3. A further summary of the projected residential care budget savings is provided below:

Care Home Capacity Occupancy * Projected savings
The Green 37 beds 20 (54%) £489,290
Seigen Manor 30 beds 19 (63%) £569,992
Middlecross 32 beds 22 (69%) £558,696

Totals 99 beds 61 (62%) £1,617,978
* Actual permanent occupancy (as at 5/6/15)

4. Part of the Executive Board’s decision at its September meeting was:

‘To begin consultation on the recommended proposals to decommission the 
three remaining care homes (Middlecross, Siegen Manor and The Green) 
and associated day centres…’

5. Following Executive Board approval, a 12-week period of consultation took place from 
1st October to 23rd December 2015 with service users and their families and carers as 
well as staff working at The Green Care Home.

6. In January 2016, the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Services, Public Health, NHS) received 
a petition/ request for scrutiny to ‘…stop the closure of The Green Home for Older 
People’ – which was formally considered at the meeting on 27 January 2016.  At that 
meeting, the Scrutiny Board agreed to consider the issues raised and examine the matter 
in more detail through a working group of the Scrutiny Board. 

7. To help facilitate the attendance of key stakeholders – including the lead petitioner, a 
working group meeting was held on 16 March 2016.  A summary note from that meeting 
is attached at Appendix 1, which also includes details of all those in attendance at that 
meeting (Annex A).

8. As set out in Appendix 1, a number of supplementary questions (Annex B) were 
subsequently submitted to the Adult Social Services for clarification and additional 
information.  The response received from Adult Social Services is presented at Appendix 
2.  

Page 3



9. This response reflects and is based upon the:

 Representations made at the working group; 
 Information presented to the working group; and, 
 Information made available in response to supplementary questions following the 

working group meeting.  
 Comments and observations of the Executive Board Member (Health, Wellbeing 

and Adults), the Director of Adult Social Services and members of the Scrutiny 
Board, highlighted at the Scrutiny Board meeting on 19 April 2016 – where an 
initial draft response was considered.  

10. In considering the content of this response, the Scrutiny Board has been very conscious 
of balancing the estimated financial costs to the Council with the potential personal costs 
and upheaval for existing residents and their families in the short term, and the medium 
to longer-term issues associated with the quality of alternative service provision in the 
independent sector.  

11. The Scrutiny Board is very grateful to all those that have contributed and provided 
information for this aspect of the Board’s work: The Board is particularly grateful to 
members of the public who shared their personal experiences of the care and facilities 
available to members of their family at The Green.

Main issues and comments from the Scrutiny Board
12. At the working group meeting in March 2016, members heard some very personal 

experiences from those with family members currently residing at The Green: The 
experiences described a caring environment, where family members felt safe and happy.  
In what were often described as difficult situations, the working group also heard that the 
caring nature of the workforce offered a high degree of reassurance to families that they 
were ‘doing the right thing’ for their loved ones.   

13. The financial context facing Adult Social Services was discussed and reiterated at the 
working group meeting.  The Scrutiny Board is aware and recognises the unprecedented 
financial climate in which the Council and Adult Social Services continue to operate, and 
the significant financial pressures this brings.  As it appears there are ‘no good solutions’ 
the financial position of Leeds’ health and social care sector is likely to form the basis of 
inquiry for the Scrutiny Board in the new municipal year (2016/17).  This will require 
significant input from Adult Social Services, Public Health and a range of health partners.

14. As set out in the notes at Appendix 1,  the working group established some important 
matters that should be taken into account when considering the future of The Green, 
including:

 Somewhat contrary to the information presented, The Green is currently providing 
a service to a relatively local community when considering neighbouring wards – 
with around 19 from the current 27 residents (approx. 70%) being relatively local to 
The Green.

 The Green is considered by others as ‘an asset’ to the Council and Adult Social 
Services is proud of the quality of care provided by the dedicated workforce.

 While it was generally acknowledged  the physical condition of the building may be 
in need of refurbishment, there was a difference of opinion around the ‘relative 
priority’ when compared to the quality of care provided.

 The relative quality of care available in nearby1 independent sector establishments 
was variable, with a large proportion rated by the Care Quality Commission as 
‘Requires Improvement’.

1 Within a 5 mile radius of The Green Care Home. Page 4



 The issue at the heart of any decision appeared to be a value judgement that 
would balance the quality of care against the cost of maintaining service provision 
at The Green.   

15. Furthermore, a range of additional important information was collated after the meeting 
and is set out in Appendix 2.  This included:

 Confirmation of the status of the Council’s remaining care homes currently 
operated by Adult Social Services.

 The financial implications for residential care costs associated with the 
implementation of a ‘national living wage’.

 Clarification of the projected ‘capital investment’ costs and implications. 
 Confirmation there was not a waiting list for The Green, with confirmation that 5 of 

the 37 beds were unoccupied (i.e. approx.. 86% occupancy)2

Quality
16. In the report to the Executive Board in September 2015, it is important to recognise that 

the projected level of revenue budget savings presented were calculated based on 
purchasing services of ‘comparable quality’ from the independent sector.  The issue of 
‘comparable quality’ is therefore a fundamental consideration.

17. As previously mentioned, the working group considered the relative quality of care 
available in nearby independent sector establishments to be variable; with a large 
proportion rated by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) as ‘Requires Improvement’.  
Based on the information provided, of the 15 independent sector care homes (without 
Nursing Care), 5 had not yet been rated by the CQC.  Of the remaining 10, 80% were 
identified as ‘requires improvement’.

18. Of the 17 independent sector care homes (with Nursing Care), 3 had not yet been rated 
by the CQC.  10 of the remaining 14 (71%) were identified as ‘requires improvement’

19. Notwithstanding the lack of an assessment to precisely determine the impact of some of 
the areas for improvement, the level of ‘requires improvement’ supports the view that 
quality in the independent sector is currently best described as ‘variable’.  

20. It is worth highlighting that during the course of the current municipal year, processes 
have been established to allow the Scrutiny Board to routinely consider CQC inspection 
outcomes on a monthly basis.  This has included a summary table of the inspection 
outcomes notified by the CQC and covers a range of health and social care services and 
providers.  Appendix 3 provides the most recent iteration of the summary report 
presented to the Scrutiny Board3.  While the proportion of ‘requires improvement’ 
appears to fallen through the course of the year – perhaps reflecting the targeted 
approach adopted by the CQC – the emerging picture around the quality of residential 
care has been an ongoing concern for members of the Scrutiny Board.      

21. Over the course of the municipal year, the Scrutiny Board has also sought to develop and 
strengthen its relationship with the CQC and local inspection managers.  At its meeting 
on 19 April 2016, the Scrutiny Board heard evidence from the CQC’s Adult Social Care 
Inspection Manager covering the Leeds area, and was presented with the following 
analysis of Adult Social Care ratings:

2 Confirmed by Adult Social Services in its response, dated 15 April 2016. 
3 Considered at the Scrutiny Board meeting held on 19 April 2016

Ratings Nationally North West Yorks. Leeds
Outstanding 92 31 1 0

Page 5



* Percentage total may differ from 100% due to rounding

22. While the above data does not differentiate between the types of adult social care 
provision, or indeed the type of provider (i.e. local authority or independent sector), this 
provides further support for the Scrutiny Board’s view around the overall quality of 
provision in Leeds; with a significantly larger proportion of providers rated as ‘require 
improvement’ when compared to the national and north of England statistics.

23. The current variability of assessed quality across the care sector across Leeds perhaps 
reflects the level of maturity within organisations operating across the City. 

Costs
24. It should also be noted that further discussions between the Chair of the Scrutiny Board 

and the Director of Adult Social Services confirmed that any capital expenditure would be 
better spent in delivering a new build facility rather than a refurbishment of the current 
facilities.  While the capital costs would be in excess of those presented to the working 
group and provided in the supplementary information, it is understood that access to 
such capital and servicing of any loans would not be prohibitive as part of an alternative 
solution.  As such, it appears the central financial issue remains the revenue costs 
associated with delivering care under the current arrangements, compared to the costs 
associated with care delivered through the independent sector.  Balancing the cost 
differential against the potential personal costs and upheaval for existing residents and 
their families, alongside the quality of available care remains a pivotal consideration.

25. As outlined in the additional information details at Appendix 2, the cost differential 
between independent sector and direct council service provision diminishes as a result of 
the national living wage.  The potential cost differential appears likely to fall between 
savings of £278k (based on actual occupancy) and £62k (based on target maximum 
occupancy – 95%):  Both estimates representing a reduction in the projected level of 
savings from those originally presented to the Executive Board in September 2015.  

26. The Director of Adult Social Services has outlined to the Scrutiny Board that recent 
occupancy levels at local authority care homes has been in the region of 67% - which 
would result in savings at the higher end of the estimated range.  While the Scrutiny 
Board also heard from the Director that 95% occupancy levels in a local authority setting 

Good 9048 2481 250 91

Requires Improvement 3987 1078 194 71

Inadequate 486 180 49 7

Totals 13613 3770 494 169

Ratings Nationally North West Yorks. Leeds
Outstanding 0.7% 0.8% 0.2% 0%

Good 66.5% 65.8% 50.6% 53.8%

Requires Improvement 29.3% 28.6% 39.3% 42.0%

Inadequate 3.6% 4.8% 9.9% 4.1%

Totals* 100% 100% 100% 100%

Page 6



may be aspirational, if the current occupancy level of around 86% were maintained, this 
would perhaps suggest savings towards the lower end of the estimated range.  

27. It is also important to recognise and consider the potential fluctuating nature of estimated 
levels of saving.  The Executive Board report in September 2015 reported projected 
savings in relation to The Green of £489,290, based on a June 2015 occupancy level of 
54%.  However, in April 2016 the Department has revised down the projected level of 
savings to around £278,000 as a result in an increase in costs within the independent 
sector and a higher occupancy level.  This represents over a 40% reduction in the 
estimated savings within a 10 month period4.  Further changes to the occupancy rates 
and/or additional costs to provision in the independent sector may further affect the 
achievability of the estimated saving. 

28. While the precise level of savings may be somewhat difficult to predict – largely due to 
the variable nature of occupancy levels – it is clear that the implementation of a national 
living wage has reduced the revenue cost differential between the existing provision and 
the independent sector.   Therefore, the Executive Board will need to consider whether 
the reduced level of estimated savings provides overall value for money when 
considering the short-term upheaval costs to individuals and their families and the 
variable quality landscape across the independent sector.

29. It is perhaps also worth recognising that while direct service costs are often presented 
without and directorate and corporate support costs, the same could also be said for 
independent  sector providers – i.e. the procurement / commissioning costs and the 
quality / contract compliance functions associated with independent  sector provision.  
Moving towards a model of solely independent sector provision, the Executive Board will 
need to assure itself that any such indirect costs associated with independent sector 
provision have been taken into account – including any potential future increases in cost.

Direct service provision
30. Leeds has a history of being a compassionate city, with the Council having a strong 

public sector ethos and delivery of direct services.  Based on the discussions at the 
working group, there was a sense that members of the public believe the Council should 
remain proud of the services Adult Social Services provides for the people of Leeds. 
However, based on the additional information provided by the working group, it is clear 
that the Council is edging towards becoming solely reliant on the independent sector for 
the provision of residential care in Leeds.  

31. Of the 10 homes currently being operated by Adult Social Services, decisions to close 
four (4) have been made in principle; three (3) have recently been subject to consultation 
with a proposal to close; and the type of provision at the remaining three (3) likely to 
change significantly.  

32. Once finally committed to a path of no direct service provision, it is difficult to see how the 
Council would ever be in a position to re-mobilise services in the future.  As such, it is 
important to be satisfied that this is a path the Council is content to take and remains in 
the best interests of the City and its residents in the longer-term.  

Other considerations
33. Part of the concern of the working group centred around the long-term impact on the 

Council should a decision be made to withdraw from any direct service provision.  For 
example:

4 The 10-month period being from June 2015 (the base date for the estimated savings presented to the Executive 
Board in September 2015) to April 2016. Page 7



 Would the Council have a weakened position in terms of future fee negotiations 
with the independent sector? 

 How would the Council manage an emergency transfers in care – should the need 
arise either as a result of a provider withdrawing from the sector voluntarily or as a 
result of any external intervention – i.e. as a consequence of a Care Quality 
Commission inspection? 

34. The Scrutiny Board believes these to be important considerations for the Executive 
Board to consider in its future deliberations and is supported by additional information 
that has become available.

35. It is understood that in March 2016, the Department of Health wrote to all local authority 
chief executives in England, reminding them of councils’ responsibilities under the Care 
Act 2014 and the accompanying statutory guidance to assist councils in delivering their 
legal obligations.  While the precise content of the letter has not been considered, it is 
understood that the letter was also copied to the Executive Board Member with 
responsibility for Adult Social Care.

36. In April 2016, the Social Care Provider Task Force made further contact with the Council 
to ensure the Department of Health’s message remains at the forefront of the thinking of 
local authority officers and elected members in discharging the Council’s responsibilities 
around Adult Social Care for the people of Leeds and their families.

37. The Social Care Provider Task Force recognises that social care in England faces 
extraordinary challenges – with already serious demographic pressures likely to 
increase in the coming years. Such pressures will undoubtedly impact on Leeds as a City 
and as a Council – in similar ways to other parts of the country.  However, the Social 
Care Provider Task Force also expressed concern that some people who use residential 
and home-based support may not be receiving the type or quality of care they need or 
deserve.  

38. The Scrutiny Board shares similar concerns and believes the overall number of Leeds 
based social care providers that have been identified as ‘Requires Improvement’ or 
‘Inadequate’5 would support those concerns. 

39. However, the Scrutiny Board is also mindful of other comments made by the Social Care 
Provider Task Force – particularly around the statutory guidance to ensure councils 
enable social care providers to deliver high quality care, delivered by well 
trained, supported and properly remunerated staff – quoting the following extracts from 
the Care Act:

4.28. People working in the care sector play a central role in providing high quality 
services.  Local authorities must consider how to help foster, enhance and 
appropriately incentivise this vital workforce to underpin effective, high quality services.
4.31. When commissioning services, local authorities should assure themselves and 
have evidence that contract terms, conditions and fee levels for care and support 
services are appropriate to provide the delivery of the agreed care packages with 
agreed quality of care.  This should support and promote the well-being of people who 
receive care and support, and allow for the service provider ability to meet statutory 
obligations to pay at least the national minimum wage and provide effective training 
and development of staff.  It should also allow retention of staff commensurate with 
delivering services to the agreed quality, and encourage innovation and improvement. 

5 Identified through the Care Quality Commission inspection and reporting processes.Page 8



 Local authorities should have regard to guidance on minimum fee levels necessary to 
provide this assurance, taking account of the local economic environment.
4.35. Local authorities should consider the impact of their own activities on the market 
as a whole, in particular the potential impact of their commissioning and re-
commissioning decisions, and how services are packaged or combined for tendering, 
and where they may also be a supplier of care and support.  The local authority may 
be the most significant purchaser of care and support in an area, and therefore its 
approach to commissioning will have an impact beyond those services which it 
contracts.  Local authorities must not undertake any actions which may threaten the 
sustainability of the market as a whole, that is the pool of providers able to deliver 
services of an appropriate quality – for example, by setting fee levels below an amount 
which is not sustainable for providers in the long-term.

40. While the Care Act is designed to ensure person-centred care, delivered through a robust 
and sustainable social care sector, it seems reasonable to consider that this will 
inevitably come at a financial cost sometime in the future. This might significantly impact 
on the financial analysis previously presented and considered by the Executive Board.  

41. While the Scrutiny Board accepts it may be difficult to accurately predict future costs 
across the independent sector, there are some developments – such as the Care Act and 
the National Living Wage where the future financial impacts are perhaps easier to 
predict. As such, in considering any financial analysis around revenue costs, the Scrutiny 
Board would urge the Executive Board to satisfy itself that all reasonable assumptions 
have been taken into account and that the Council will not be exposed to unmitigated 
risks should there be no future public sector provision of residential care for older people 
in Leeds.   

Conclusion

42. The Scrutiny Board recognises the significance and difficulties associated with the 
decision under consideration.  The Scrutiny Board also recognises the significance of the 
decision under consideration applies equally to all stakeholders.

43. To help draw some conclusions, the Scrutiny Board has considered and tried to balance 
a range of information to help inform any future decision.  To this end, the Scrutiny Board 
wishes to highlight the following points:

 The working group was very impressed by the petitioners who want to keep the 
home open, and the arguments put forward. A petition consisting of more than 
3800 names should be carefully considered.

 The working group findings included:
o The Green serves a local population and caters for local residents;
o The Green has a clear local focus and could take more residents;
o Families and residents are happy and feel safe at the home. 
o Care is good; it has been judged so independently by the CQC.
o The quality of alternative nearby provision in the independent sector is 

‘variable’. 
 Care in Local Authority homes in Leeds is statistically better than care delivered by 

the independent sector. This is particularly stark in the case of The Green when 
considering alternative care nearby6.

 Despite the physical accommodation at The Green not being equivalent to modern 
standards, i.e. no en-suite facilities; residents and their families clearly prefer to 
have it stay open than close.

6 Within a 5 mile radius of The Green Care Home Page 9



 Essentially, the value judgement comes down to a balance between the 
affordability of revenue funding versus upheaval costs in the short-term and  good 
care in the longer-term: All other factors appear not to be significantly influential.

44. The Scrutiny Board recognises the financial plight of the Council and Adult Social 
Services.  However, the significant balance appears to be a value judgement between 
the estimated financial costs to the Council, against the potential personal costs and 
upheaval for existing residents and their families in the short term, alongside the medium 
to longer-term issues associated with the quality of alternative service provision in the 
independent sector.

45. It is clear to the Scrutiny Board that everyone working and living at The Green do not 
believe the home is at its natural end of making a positive and useful contribution to care 
in the city.  This view is also supported by families of residents.  

46. Based on the range of information considered by the Scrutiny Board, and in particular the 
current landscape of service quality across the care sector in Leeds, the Scrutiny Board 
would ask decision makers to carefully consider whether or not it is indeed the right time 
to make a firm and final decision on the future of The Green, or whether further 
consideration could be deferred to sometime in the future, after an appropriate period of 
time to allow the full effects of recent changes to be analysed and assessed.

Cllr Peter Gruen, Chair 
On behalf of the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Services, Public Health, NHS)
April 2016

Recommendation 
That any decision regarding the long-term future of The Green be 
deferred for a minimum of 2 years, in order to: 

a) Re-consider the comparative costs of provision as the impact of a 
national living wage and the requirements of the Care Act 2014 
take effect locally.

b) Assess the occupancy levels achieved through positive promotion 
of The Green to local residents and beyond.

c) Re-assess the overall ‘quality landscape’ across the care sector in 
Leeds and specifically the quality of alternative nearby provision in 
the independent sector.

Page 10



APPENDIX 1

Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Services, Public Health, NHS)
The Green – Working Group Meeting

Committee Room 6/7, Leeds Civic Hall
16 March 2016

NOTES OF THE MEETING

The Chair opened the meeting and thanked everyone for attending. Introductions 
were given and apologies were noted – as presented at Annex A.

The following written information had been made available to those attending the 
meeting:

 A summary of petition submitted in support of the Request for Scrutiny
 A report for the working group, prepared by the Director of Adult Social 

Services (dated 16 February 2016).
 Letter from Richard Burgon MP (dated 15 March 2016)

The Chair outlined the purpose of the meeting was for members of the Scrutiny 
Board to receive and consider the:

 Concerns of petitioners;
 Report submitted by the Director of Adult Social Services; 
 Contributions from other stakeholders, including the Executive Board 

Member, local Ward Members and Richard Burgon MP.

In order to form an overall view and basis for a response to the proposals, the Chair 
advised that members of the Scrutiny Board would then privately consider all the 
information provided and discussed at the meeting.

Petitioners
The petitioners and those with relatives currently residing at The Green were invited 
to address the meeting.  

Those present provided some very detailed and emotional descriptions of their 
personal experience of The Green and finding the ‘right place’ for their loved ones to 
be cared for.  Some of the overall and general issues highlighted and discussed 
included:

 The purpose of the petition was to try to give those with relatives at The 
Green with a voice.

 The request for the Council to re-think its proposal to close The Green.
 The care provided at The Green was considered to be ‘excellent’ and it should 

be considered to be a ‘flagship’ that the Council should be very proud of.
 Prior to choosing The Green for relatives, some of those present had viewed 

many care homes- some good, some excellent and some poor. It was felt The 
Green fell into the excellent category.

 There was significant concern regarding the potential detrimental effect for 
relatives and other residents having to move homes as a result of any closure.  

 Relatives were mindful of some of the ‘horror stories’ surrounding some 
independent  sector providers and it was felt that only having independent  
sector homes available was limiting choice. 

Page 11



APPENDIX 1

Executive Board member
The Chair invited Cllr Lisa Mulherin for some initial comments and observation.  Cllr 
Mulherin addressed the meeting and made the following main points:

 Thanks to the petitioners for engaging in the consultation process and for 
sharing their views and perspectives of the care provided at The Green

 It was important to recognise that no decision had yet been made regarding 
the future of The Green or other care homes that formed part of the Council’s 
consultation.

 All comments received as part of the consultation would be reviewed and 
would ultimately inform any future decision.

 The Council, and in particular in the area of Adult Social Care, had a good 
track record of actively listening and acting on feedback from public 
consultations. 

Director 
The Chair invited the Director to address the meeting and highlight any specific 
matter from the report prepared for the working group.  The main issues highlight 
and discussed included:

 An understanding of the points and issues raised by the petitioners and those 
with relatives receiving care at The Green.

 The Department and the Council was very proud of The Green and the 
standard of care provided and comparing experiences from elsewhere, Leeds 
was a very compassionate City.

 The Council and the Department were facing an unprecedented financial 
situation, with the Department needing to make £15M savings in 2016/17: 
Therefore affordability and the financial situation were the main drivers for the 
proposals presented for consultation.

 Notwithstanding the quality of care provided at The Green, the building was in 
need of repair and the low occupancy levels (of around 67%) had a significant 
impact on the running costs.

 Currently, there was an estimated 1000 over-supply of residential care places 
across the City, whereas there was a greater demand for nursing care.  
Legislation prevents the Department directly providing nursing care. 

 The consultation closed at the end of December 2015, and the responses 
were currently being processed and analysed.  It was intended to present a 
further report to the Council’s Executive Board for a decision in June 2016. 

Initial discussion 
Following the Director’s comments, a number of points of clarification were sought 
and discussed, including:

 The quality of care at alternative providers and the variability in the close 
vicinity to The Green.

 Details around the consultation outcomes.
 The pressure caused by a rise in cases of increasingly complex dementia and 

the impact on delayed discharges.  The associated decision of CCGs to de-
commissioning 5 beds at The Green and seek alternative types of provision/ 
care.

 The outcomes of the Francis report and subsequent shortages across Nursing 
Care outside of hospital settings.

Page 12



APPENDIX 1

 Decisions by medics around discharges and the appreciation of the level and 
type of care available in some residential care settings compared to nursing 
care. 

 Value for money and the potential ‘good and bad’ reasons for lower costs.
 The Council’s quality and cost framework arrangements with the independent 

sector.
 Current occupancy level at The Green: 27 from 32 available beds (84%), 

compared to 67% historically.
 The proximity of residents and their families to The Green.
 The budget envelop and differential costs between local authority provision 

and independent sector provision.
 Contract and quality standards monitoring arrangements within the 

Department.
 The processes and available support for residents in the event of any future 

closure and the Department’s previous experience and ‘good track record’ in 
this regard.  

Ward member
Following the initial discussion, Cllr Catherine Dobson – ward member for Killingbeck 
and Seacroft – was invited to address the meeting and highlight any other specific 
matters for the working group to consider.  The following points were made:

 Fully supported the petitioners attending the meeting, along with other 
residents from The Green, family members and staff.

 There appeared to be a balance to be drawn between the standard of care 
provided at The Green and the condition of the building and the facilities 
available.  

Further discussion
The Chair addressed the meeting and sought to identify a number of points where 
there was a common understand and agreement, including:

 The Green providing a service to a relatively local community: taking a slightly 
broader view and considering neighbouring wards, around 19 from the current 
27 residents (approx. 70%) were relatively local to The Green.

 Of the 3800 members of the public that had signed the petition, it appeared 
reasonable to consider that many were local residents and had some 
connection with The Green.

 The consultation process appeared to be fair – with good opportunities to 
express views. Although there was a degree of shock from residents and their 
families around the proposal to close The Green.

 It was agreed that The Green provides ‘good’ care: no concerns from a local 
authority perspective; no concerns from relatives / families; no contrary 
evidence from the Care Quality Commission.

 The balance of the argument primarily seemed to be between the weighting 
apportioned to the cost of provision and the quality of care provided.

 Members also wished to consider the potential impact of moving on the 
current 27 residents and their families and it was disturbing to consider that 
some might suffer distress during that process, through any loss of friendship 
groups and relationships with key workers and other members of staff.

Page 13



APPENDIX 1

Further comments from the Executive Board member

 The workforce at The Green was considered an asset to the Council and 
there had been no adverse effects on the standard of care, following the 
announced proposals.

 The implementation of a National Living Wage would need to be factored into 
the analysis and assessment of the available options.

 Reiterated the huge cost pressures facing the Council and the Department.
 Other savings with the Department would need to be found if The Green was 

to remain open.
 Confirmation that there were no ‘good’ options.
 Reiterated previous comments around listening to feedback on the proposals 

and welcoming the comments from the Scrutiny Board prior to any decision.  

Further comments from other members of the working group

 Concerns about the mixed picture of quality in nearby facilities and that the 
discussion at the working group painted ‘too rosy’ a picture in this regard. To 
illustrate, reference was made to Tables 2 and 3 in the report to the working 
group.   

 The impact of the threat of closure had not appeared to adversely affect 
admissions and/or occupancy levels.

Concluding the discussion, the Chair thanked those in attendance for their 
contribution to the meeting and advised that the working group would give further 
consideration to the matters discussed in private.  

Deliberations of the working group
In discussing all the information presented and highlighted at the meeting, the 
following points were agreed:

 Agreement with the overall assessment of the financial pressures facing the 
Council and the Department.  

 The quality of care at The Green did not appear to be in question.
 There was some concern about the physical state of the building described at 

the meeting: However most of the working group had not visited The Green 
recently.

 Careful consideration needed to be given around whether any potential 
closure would have a disproportionate impact on the care, security and well-
being of current residents.  

 The impact on residents’ families was also a significant consideration.
 Closure should be considered as the ‘last resort’ option.
 A range of additional information would be helpful in drawing together any 

conclusions and recommendations.  (The additional information requested in 
summarised at Annex B).

 A copy of the Executive Board report (September 2015) should be provided to 
members in attendance at the meeting.

The Chair thanked members for their attendance and contributions to the discussion 
and a draft report setting out the comments and observation would be produced as 
soon as possible.

The meeting was closed.

Page 14



APPENDIX 1
ANNEX A

DETAILS OF ATTENDANCE AND APOLOGIES

ATTENDANCE

Members of the Scrutiny Board
Cllr Billy Flynn
Cllr Peter Gruen (Chair)
Cllr Ghulam Hussain
Cllr Christine Macniven 
Cllr Shirley Varley 
Dr J Beal - Healthwatch Leeds (Co-opted member)

Other Members
Cllr Lisa Mulherin – Executive Board Member for Health, Wellbeing and Adults 
Cllr Catherine Dobson – Ward Member (Killingbeck and Seacroft)

Petitioners
Laura Denbigh (lead petitioner)
Jill Denbigh
Lindsey Cannon
Tony Cannon
Adult Social Care 
Cath Roff – Director
Anna Clifford – Programme Manager
Mark Phillott – Head of Contracts and Business Development

Others
Steven Courtney – Principal Scrutiny Adviser

APOLOGIES

Apologies had been received from the following members of the Scrutiny Board:

Cllr Caroline Anderson
Cllr Arif Hussain
Cllr Sandy Lay
Cllr Brian Selby
Cllr Alice Smart
Cllr Eileen Taylor

Page 15



APPENDIX 1
ANNEX B

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

(1) Are The Green, Siegen Manor and Middlecross the last remaining local 
authority run (in-house) care homes? If not, please provide an up-to-date list 
of Council facilities.

(2) Does the implementation of a ‘national living wage’ impact on the financial 
assessment presented to Executive Board? If so, what are the specific 
implications in terms of cost comparisons?

(3) Are there any specific implications of the implementation of a ‘national living 
wage’ for different business models – in particular the Social Enterprise 
model?

(4) Have the number of beds currently block purchased by Leeds CCGs (that will 
become available for more general use) been included in the financial 
calculations? If not, what are the potential implications for generating 
additional income and how does this affect the financial assessment?

(5) Is there currently a waiting list for places at the Green?  Are there any reasons 
why the relatives attending the working group meeting might understand there 
to be a waiting list?

(6) Are there any en-suite facilities available at The Green?  How many shared 
bathrooms are there at the home and what is the ratio of the total number of 
beds available / against the number of bathrooms for residents?

(7) The 5-year capital costs for The Green (to meet legislative standards) is 
projected at over £500k: What are the legislative standards referred to? When 
was the last condition survey undertaken? To what extent has there been any 
consideration of a public / private partnership to help fund this work?

Page 16



1. Background

1.1 On 6th April 2016, Steven Courtney (Principal Scrutiny Adviser for the Adult Social 
Services, Public Health and NHS Scrutiny Board) emailed Cath Roff (Director of Adult 
Social Services) following the Scrutiny Working Group Meeting that had taken place on 
16th March 2016.  Cath Roff, Anna Maria Clifford and Mark Phillott had been in 
attendance at the meeting representing the Directorate.

1.2 Within this email, Steven Courtney raised points of clarification identified post-meeting.  
Responses to these points were provided by Anna Maria Clifford via email on 14th April 
2016.

1.3 Immediately following this email, Steven Courtney raised a number of follow up queries.

1.4 The queries raised in both Steven Courtney’s emails (6th and 14th April 2016) are listed in 
the section below along with the Directorate’s responses.

2. Points of clarification raised in emails received on 6th and 14th April 2016 and ASC 
responses

2.1 Are The Green, Siegen Manor and Middlecross the last remaining local authority run (in-
house) care homes? If not, please provide an up-to-date list of Council facilities.  Can you 
provide details of whether these are general or more specialist residential care settings?

2.1.1 The table below lists the 10 care homes currently being operated by Adult Social Care.  
The table indicates what type of care is provided and if there are any related Executive 
Board decisions:

Establishment Type of Care and 
Current Status

Executive Board Decision

Dolphin 
Manor

General Needs

In operation – new 
permanent 
admissions permitted

Decommission at a future date through 
either the transfer of ownership to a 
community interest company (subject to 
satisfactory business evaluation and due 
diligence test) or on completion of new 
build residential care facilities in Rothwell

Knowle Manor General Needs

In operation – new 
permanent 
admissions permitted

Ph
as

e 
1 

(D
ec

is
io

n 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
1)

Spring 
Gardens

General Needs

In operation – new 
permanent 
admissions permitted

When it is considered that suitable 
alternative provision is available for 
Knowle Manor and Spring Gardens, the 
Director of Adult Social Services, in 
consultation with the Executive Member 
for Adult Social Care, will consider a 
decision to cease permanent admissions 
from an agreed date

Delivering the Better Lives Strategy in Leeds Programme
Briefing Note to Cllr Gruen Chair of the 
Adult Social Services, Public Health and 
NHS Scrutiny Board

APPENDIX 2

Page 17



Establishment Type of Care and 
Current Status

Executive Board Decision

Home Lea 
House

General Needs

In operation – new 
permanent 
admissions permitted

To consult on potential development in 
partnership with a community group / third 
sector organisation

Manorfield 
House

General Needs

In operation – no new 
permanent 
admissions permitted

Remain open for existing, cease 
admissions and will close:
• when no longer required by existing 

residents
• if the health and wellbeing of the 

remaining residents cannot be 
maintained

• should alternative new residential care 
provision become available within the 
ward

Richmond 
House

Intermediate Care / 
Respite

In operation

Local authority provision of city-wide 
recovery / reablement / respite / 
intermediate care services

Ph
as

e 
2 

(D
ec

is
io

n 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
3)

Suffolk Court General Needs / 
Intermediate Care

In operation – no new 
permanent 
admissions permitted

Proposal to consider and as a potential 
site for specialist short stay integrated 
intermediate care unit with access to 24 
hour nursing.  No new permanent 
residents.

Middlecross
Siegen Manor

Ph
as

e 
3

The Green

Specialist Dementia

In operation

No decision has been taken on the future 
of these homes.  Executive Board has 
only given permission to consult on the 
proposal to close these homes.

2.2 Does the implementation of a ‘national living wage’ impact on the financial assessment 
presented to Executive Board? If so, what are the specific implications in terms of cost 
comparisons?

2.2.1 The report that was presented to Scrutiny Working Group used the 2015/16 enhanced 
dementia fee (£478 p/w) as a comparison which did not include the implementation of the 
living wage.  We have recently received the 2016/17 enhanced dementia fee (£507 p/w) 
which does include for the national living wage (6% increase).

2.2.2 The Table below shows what the proposed framework fees are from 1st April 2016 to 
reflect the introduction of the National Living Wage.  The enhanced residential dementia 
fee which has been used as a cross comparison is highlighted in red:

Page 18



2016/17 Framework 
Fees (per week) from 

1st April 2016
Core Fee £468

Residential Enhanced 
Fee £486

Core Fee £481Residential 
Dementia Enhanced 

Fee £507

Core Fee £502
Nursing Enhanced 

Fee £523

Core Fee £506Nursing 
Dementia Enhanced 

Fee £528

2.2.3 Based on direct service costs only and using 2015/16 framework fees, we had 
estimated that we would make annual savings of £318k (based on actual occupancy) and 
£115k (based on target maximum occupancy – 95%).

2.2.4 Based on direct service costs only and using 2016/17 framework fees, we now 
estimate that we would make annual savings of £278k (based on actual occupancy) and 
£62k (based on target maximum occupancy – 95%).

2.2.5 As a result, it is projected that there will be a reduction of annual savings of £41k (based 
on actual occupancy) and £53k (on target maximum occupancy – 95%).

2.2.6 The report also provided details of total costs to run The Green including directorate and 
corporate support costs.

2.2.7 Based on total service costs and using 2015/16 framework fees, we had estimated that 
we would make annual savings of £486k (based on actual occupancy) and £284k (based 
on target maximum occupancy – 95%).

2.2.8 Based on total service costs and using 2016/17 framework fees, we now estimate that 
we would make annual savings of £446k (based on actual occupancy) and £231k (based 
on target maximum occupancy – 95%).

2.2.9 As a result, it is also projected that there will be a reduction of annual savings of £41k 
(based on actual occupancy) and £53k (on target maximum occupancy – 95%). 

2.3 Are there any specific implications of the implementation of a ‘national living wage’ for 
different business models – in particular the Social Enterprise model?

2.3.1 There are no variances to the Living Wage issue re Social enterprise.  The Variance in 
Aspire costs as a Social Enterprise (the former Learning Disabilities in-house service) are 
long term – namely that as staff leave (who were on LCC protected terms and conditions) 
– they will be replaced by staff on lower T’s and C’s – this is a long term plan before you 
see savings, and for a relative small staff team – such as a care home – these are fairly 
insignificant.  In addition, the Local authority does not set the rate per home per what 
they pay staff – so the authority would be paying the same LCC framework rate as any 
other independent sector provider.

Page 19



2.4 Have the number of beds currently block purchased by Leeds CCGs (that will become 
available for more general use) been included in the financial calculations? If not, what 
are the potential implications for generating additional income and how does this affect 
the financial assessment?

2.4.1 Yes, the 5 beds that were formerly purchased by Leeds CCGs have been included in the 
calculation.  From 1st April 2016, the CCGs no longer block purchase these beds.

2.5 Is there currently a waiting list for places at the Green?  Are there any reasons why the 
relatives attending the working group meeting might understand there to be a waiting list?

2.5.1 No, there is not a waiting list.  We do not hold waiting lists.  As at 15/0416, we have 30 
permanent residents and one respite resident at The Green.  As such 5 of the total 37 
beds are unoccupied.

2.6 Are there any en-suite facilities available at The Green?  How many shared bathrooms 
are there at the home and what is the ratio of the total number of beds available / against 
the number of bathrooms for residents?

2.6.1 There are no-ensuite bathrooms at The Green.  There are 8 shared bathrooms which is a 
ratio of just under one bathroom to every five bedrooms.

2.7 The 5-year capital costs for The Green (to meet legislative standards) is projected at over 
£500k: What are the legislative standards referred to? When was the last condition 
survey undertaken? To what extent has there been any consideration of a public / private 
partnership to help fund this work?

2.7.1 The latest Survey and Condition report for The Green was commissioned by Adult Social 
Care and carried out by NPS in October 2012.

2.7.2 The Report states “To comply with current legislation and to bring the building and its 
facilities up to a good standard certain works need to be undertaken. The following 
recommendations are given together with their budget costing.  All estimates are 
exclusive of professional fees and VAT.  In summary the estimated cumulative total 
spend over the next five years is £522,635.00”

2.7.3 The Report states that in relation to the works required for mechanical and electrical plant 
and equipment, this is to ensure “the building services comply with current Health and 
Safety and Office Accommodation Regulation”.  In addition, “Health and safety glazing 
legislation, which is now retrospective, requires safety glazing to doors and windows”.  

2.7.4 In addition, the report also makes recommendations as to Provisions under Part M of the 
Building Regulations and the Equality Act 2010.

2.7.5 The report also makes comments and recommendations based on the requirements of 
Approved Document B (ADB) of the Building Regulations 2000 and the Regulatory 
Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (RRFSO).  “The requirements of ADB are retrospective, 
therefore landlords, employers and occupiers of a building have responsibilities and 
obligations under the Health and Safety at Work Etc Act 1974, the Workplace 
Regulations 1992, Fire Precautions (Workplace) Regulations 1997 and Amendment 
1999, amongst others, to have manage health and safety in the workplace. To assist in 
this, NPS have determined that ADB, being the current standard for existing and new 

Page 20



buildings, shall be the performance indicator against which all buildings shall be 
measured”.

2.7.6 Furthermore, the survey also provided budget costings to refurbish the property to meet 
the 2000 Care Quality Commission standards in the region of £1,433,373.  “However, the 
report stressed “that refurbishment to this standard will still not meet the requirements 
due to the small bedroom floor areas and corridor widths present in this building”.  The 
report also stated that the budget costings to refurbish the property to meet the High 
Dependency Dementia Standards would be in the region of £1,945,785 - however, it was 
noted that “to meet this standard major structural alteration will need to be carried out”.

2.7.7 In terms of efforts to develop a public / private partnership to help fund this work, the 
survey makes it clear that any major works would require a reduction in the numbers of 
rooms.  This then impacts on economies of scale in terms of a revenue return.  Private 
Providers are investing in care homes that are larger, on average 50 – 70 beds and as 
such there has not been an approach by a private or public provider to refurbish the 
existing building.

ASC Programme Office
Adult Social Care
15th April 2016

Page 21



APPENDIX 3
SUMMARY OF RECENT CARE QUALITY COMMISSION (CQC) INSPECTION REPORTS 

CONSIDERED BY THE SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES, PUBLIC HEALTH, NHS) ON 19 APRIL 2016

Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

29 July 2015 Human Support Group 
Ltd. Leeds (LS7 2AH) Homecare Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-456708711 Chapel Allerton

31 July 2015 Springfield Care Home 
(LS25 1EP) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-154091843 Garforth & Swillington

31 July 2015 Spinney Residential 
Home (LS12 3QH) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-112270555 Armley

17 Aug. 2015
Waterloo Manor 
Independent Hospital 
(LS25 1NA)

Hospital - mental 
health Inadequate http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-156620871 Garforth & Swillington

18 Aug. 2015
Ethical Homecare 
Solutions
(LS7 3DX)

Homecare Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-321807303 Chapel Allerton

18 Aug. 2015 Hopton Court 
(LS12 3UA) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-309428606 Armley

18 Aug. 2015 Owlett Hall 
(BD11 1ED) Nursing Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-141599363 Morley North

20 Aug. 2015 Oakwood Hall
(LS8 2PF) Nursing Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-123576529 Roundhay

21 Aug. 2015
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust 
(WF2 0XQ)

Ambulance Service Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RX8 Headquarters in 

Wakefield

25 Aug. 2015 Caremark (Leeds) (LS6 
2QH) Homecare Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-232681786 Hyde Park & Woodhouse

26 Aug. 2015 Adel Grange Residential 
Home (LS16 8HX) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-110993039 Adel & Wharfedale

P
age 22

http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTMyMTgwNzMwMw%3d%3d&r=5339673847&d=1313476&p=1&t=h&h=367337d32d91642e3a94a660eb36517a
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTMwOTQyODYwNg%3d%3d&r=5339673847&d=1313476&p=1&t=h&h=167a7d81746024bef4f68842f36779dd
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTE0MTU5OTM2Mw%3d%3d&r=5320033023&d=1304832&p=1&t=h&h=98bfc26988855180cb5708fe3bb6d721
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTEyMzU3NjUyOQ%3d%3d&r=5339673847&d=1313476&p=1&t=h&h=efd8eeb1091cadb326907e0d7e5b7a87
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-232681786
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-110993039


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

26 Aug. 2015
Atkinson Court Care 
Home 
(LS9 9EJ)

Nursing Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126476576 Burmantofts & 

Richmond Hill

 7 Sept. 2015
Airedale Residential 
Home
(LS28 7RF)

Residential Care Requires 
Improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-128272457 Pudsey

10 Sept. 2015
Brooklands Residential 
Home
(LS19 7RR)

Residential Care Inadequate http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-117613913 Otley & Yeadon

11 Sept. 2015
Oaklands Residential 
Home 
(LS26 9AB)

Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1963864878 Kippax & Methley

11 Sept. 2015
Sheild Recruitment 
Limited
(LS1 2NL)

Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1289082975 City & Hunslet

16 Sept. 2015 Kirkstall Court 
(LS5 3LJ)

Rehabilitation / 
Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-112566812 Kirkstall

17 Sept. 2015 Oakwood Lane Medical 
Practice (LS8 3BZ) GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-2000523982 LS8 3BZ

17 Sept. 2015
The North Leeds 
Medical Practice (LS17 
6PZ)

GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-574141809 Moortown

17 Sept. 2015 Carlton House 
(LS26 0SF) Residential Care Requires 

Improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890582 Ardsley & Robin Hood

24 Sept. 2015
Collingham Church View 
Surgery 
(LS22 5BQ)

GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-547723756 Harewood

24 Sept. 2015 Summerfield Court 
(LS13 1AJ) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1441008775 Bramley & Stanningley

30 Sept. 2015 Suffolk Court 
(LS19 7JN) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455689 Otley & Yeadon

P
age 23

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126476576
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTEyODI3MjQ1Nw%3d%3d&r=5398588902&d=1338764&p=1&t=h&h=6818af254ac8f84d1ed646234bf0f55e
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTExNzYxMzkxMw%3d%3d&r=5398588902&d=1338764&p=1&t=h&h=1b3d03c9673f789ea596de41f6348f2b
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTE5NjM4NjQ4Nzg%3d&r=5398588902&d=1338764&p=1&t=h&h=232b96e0e3b6dc20f1e6d941b2ba3330
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTEyODkwODI5NzU%3d&r=5398588902&d=1338764&p=1&t=h&h=965b52f81e7a23470abc3415b3d232ac
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-112566812
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890582
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-547723756
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTE0NDEwMDg3NzU%3d&r=5438725590&d=1356647&p=1&t=h&h=9e074dffbfcc9e979d956a79a6f8b29c
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455689


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

30 Sept. 2015 Oakhaven Care Home 
(LS6 4QD) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-116738339 Moortown

 1 Oct. 2015 Hilton Road Surgery 
(LS8 4HA) GP Practice Requires 

Improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-583516067 Chapel Allerton

 2 Oct. 2015
Brandon House Nursing 
Home 
(LS8 2PE)

Nursing Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126778737 Roundhay

 9 Oct. 2015
Wharfedale House - 
Care Home Physical 
Disabilities (LS22 6PU)

Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-120087427 Wetherby

12 Oct. 2015 Home Lea House 
(LS26 0PH) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455527 Rothwell

12 Oct. 2015
Seacroft Grange Care 
Village
(LS14 6JL)

Nursing Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-990605516 Killingbeck & Seacroft

15 Oct. 2015 Aire View 
(LS5 3ED) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-134645463 Armley

15 Oct. 2015 St Lukes Care Home 
(LS28 5PL) Nursing Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-116738422 Calverley & Farsley

16 Oct. 2015 Astha Limited - Leeds  
(LS7 2AH) Homecare Agency Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1554674153 Chapel Allerton 

22 Oct. 2015 Amber Lodge – Leeds 
(LS12 4LL) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-123208614 Farnley & Wortley

28 Oct. 2015
Anchor Trust (The 
Laureates) 
(LS20 9BJ)

Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126242468 Guiseley & Rawdon

28 Oct. 2015 Rossefield Manor 
(LS13 3TG) Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-283353126 Bramley & Stanningley

P
age 24

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-116738339
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-583516067
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126778737
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-120087427
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455527
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-990605516
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-134645463
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-116738422
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1554674153
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-123208614
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126242468
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-283353126


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

28 Oct. 2015 Acre Green Nursing 
Home (LS10 4HT) Nursing Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-309409391 Middleton Park

28 Oct. 2015
St Anne's Community 
Services - Leeds DCA 2 
(LS11 6JU)

Homecare Agency / 
Supported living

Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773590 City & Hunslet

29 Oct. 2015 EcoClean Community 
Care (LS16 6PD) Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1177041289 Weetwood

30 Oct. 2015 Grace Homecare 
(LS11 6XD) Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1242015563 City & Hunslet

30 Oct. 2015
Helping Hand Care 
Services Limited (LS7 
4NB)

Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-140567061 Chapel Allerton

30 Oct. 2015
St Anne's Community 
Services – Benedicts 
(LS22 7TF)

Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773225 Wetherby

30 Oct. 2015 Spring Gardens (LS21 
3LJ) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455675 Otley & Yeadon

30 Oct. 2015 Ashcroft House – Leeds 
(LS16 9BQ) Residential Care Inadequate http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-109574569 Adel & Wharfedale

3 Nov. 2015 Berkeley Court
(LS8 3QJ) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-145939999 Gipton & Harehills

9 Nov. 2015
Grove Court Nursing 
Home
(LS6 3AE)

Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-160600751 Headingley

9 Nov. 2015
Charlton Court Nursing 
Home (LS28 8ED) Nursing Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-278008729 Calverley & Farsley

10 Nov. 2015 Donisthorpe Hall 
(LS17 6AW) Nursing Care Inadequate http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-114958058 Moortown

P
age 25

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-309409391
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773590
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1177041289
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1242015563
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-140567061
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773225
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455675
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-109574569
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-145939999
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-160600751
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-278008729
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-114958058


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

11 Nov. 2015
Cardinal Court Extra 
Care Sheltered Housing 
(LS11 8HP)

Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-283353021 Beeston & Holbeck

11 Nov. 2015
Yorkshire Senior Care 
t/a Home Instead Senior 
Care (LS22 7FD)

Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-334454074 Wetherby

11 Nov. 2015 Total Care Nursing 
Limited (LS17 9NJ) Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-128520276 Alwoodley

18 Nov. 2015 Neville House 
(LS7 4LF) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-119947839 Chapel Allerton

19 Nov. 2015 CASA Leeds 
(LS11 7DF) Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1160833963 Beeston & Holbeck

19 Nov. 2015 Grace Homecare 
(LS11 6XD) Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1242015563 City & Hunslet

23 Nov. 2015
Heathcotes (Kirklands) 
(LS27 9PA) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1788657507 Morley North

26 Nov. 2015
Bramham Medical 
Centre
(LS23 6RN)

GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-549270599 Wetherby

27 Nov. 2015
St Anne's Community 
Services - Leeds DCA 
(LS11 6JU)

Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773576 City & Hunslet

30 Nov. 2015
Red Court Care Home 
(LS28 7RZ) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-116425738 Pudsey

30 Nov. 2015
Kestrel House
(LS2 7PU) Homecare Agency Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-137500639 City & Hunslet

1 Dec. 2015
Moor Allerton Care 
Centre (LS17 5PU) Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-117976935 Alwoodley

P
age 26

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-283353021
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-334454074
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-128520276
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-119947839
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1160833963
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1242015563
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1788657507
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-549270599
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773576
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-116425738
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-137500639
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-117976935


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

1 Dec. 2015
Berkeley Court 
(LS8 3QJ) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-145939999 Gipton & Harehills

3 Dec. 2015
Personal Care 
Specialists (LS8 3LG) Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1137966450 Gipton & Harehills

3 Dec. 2015
Comfort Call – Leeds 
(LS27 9SE) Homecare Agency Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1626371041 Morley North

9 Dec. 2015
Richmond House 
(LS28 5ST) Rehabilitation Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455646 Calverley & Farsley

12 Nov. 2015 Dr Richard Hall & 
Partners (LS22 6RT) GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-570838556 Wetherby

14 Dec. 2015
St Katherine's 
Residential Home 
(LS8 1DR)

Residential Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-113824084 Roundhay

16 Dec. 2015
St Anne's Community 
Services - Shared Lives 
(LS2 9BN)

Shared Lives Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773296 Hyde Park & Woodhouse

16 Dec. 2015
Sabourn Court Nursing 
Home (LS8 2PA) Nursing Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-128272632 Roundhay

24 Dec. 2015 Alexander Residential 
Home (LS27 9JJ) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121906361 Morley North

24 Dec. 2015 Scope Inclusion Leeds 
(LS11 5HL) Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1883869398 City & Hunslet

24 Dec. 2015 Dr Makram Mossad GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-495121189 Cross Gates & Whinmoor

30 Dec. 2015
Radcliffe Gardens 
Nursing Home 
(LS28 8BG)

Nursing Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-376464810 Pudsey

P
age 27

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-145939999
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1137966450
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1626371041
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455646
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-570838556
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-113824084
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773296
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-128272632
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTEyMTkwNjM2MQ%3d%3d&r=5736947462&d=1481953&p=1&t=h&h=14992b661bb290de1fdbb171134f6c73
http://track.vuelio.uk.com/z.z?l=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5jcWMub3JnLnVrL2RpcmVjdG9yeS8xLTE4ODM4NjkzOTg%3d&r=5736947462&d=1481953&p=1&t=h&h=2dd9291d61b38a250d35088b3696e48d
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-376464810


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

5 Jan. 2016 Grayson Home Care 
(LS23 6BH) Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1783337738 Wetherby

6 Jan. 2016 Ferndale Care Home
(LS27 0DW) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-346180792 Morley South

8 Jan. 2016 Terry Yorath House
(LS8 1BF) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-222658231 Roundhay

11 Jan. 2016
Angels Community 
Enterprises CIC (LS11 
5HR)

Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-316644795 City & Hunslet

11 Jan. 2016 House of Light 
(LS7 4ND) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-110212919 Chapel Allerton

11 Jan. 2016 Housing & Care 21 – 
Leeds (LS14 6UF) Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-260466707 Killingbeck & Seacroft

11 Jan. 2016 Willowbank Nursing 
Home (LS15 8SE) Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-124000097 Cross Gates & Whinmoor

13 Jan. 2016 Nesfield Lodge 
(LS10 3LG) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-123817308 Middleton Park

14 Jan. 2016 Homelife (Leeds) 
Limited (LS11 8ND) Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-143428278 Beeston & Holbeck

15 Jan. 2016 Elderly Care Services 
(LS7 1AB) Nursing Care Inadequate http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-415123704 City & Hunslet

15 Dec. 2015 Arthington Medical 
Centre GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-562663838  City & Hunslet

20 Jan. 2016 Beech Hall 
(LS12 3UE) Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2087773928 Armley

20 Jan. 2016 Hillside House 
(LS6 2AY) Residential Care Requires 

Improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2242192562 Headingley

P
age 28

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1783337738
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-346180792
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-222658231
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-316644795
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-110212919
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-260466707
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-124000097
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-123817308
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-143428278
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-415123704
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-562663838
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2087773928
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2242192562


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

21 Jan. 2016
St Anne's Community 
Services – Rockhaven 
(LS18 5NF)

Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773758 Horsforth

21 Jan. 2016 Ashlands
(LS26 9JE) Residential Care Inadequate http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-119643340 Kippax & Methley

21 Jan. 2016 Bellbrooke Surgery GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-568336972 Burmantofts & 
Richmond Hill

21 Jan. 2016 Dr Haridas Upendra Pai GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-558030590 Beeston & Holbeck

21 Jan. 2016 Dr Sadiq Ali GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-512434861 City & Hunslet

21 Jan. 2016 Westgate Surgery GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-550907714 Otley & Yeadon

21 Jan. 2016 Rothwell Dental Surgery Dental Practice Not compliant http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-1430655723 Rothwell

22 Jan. 2016
Siegen Manor Resource 
Centre
(LS27 9EE)

Residential Care 
(Rehab.) Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455660 Morley South

25 Jan. 2016
Morley Manor 
Residential Home (LS27 
9DL)

Residential Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-111200339 Morley South

28 Jan. 2016
Complete Care Agency 
Ltd
(LS19 7ZA)

Homecare agency Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1070838441 Otley & Yeadon

28 Jan. 2016 The Street Lane Practice 
(LS8 1AY) GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-538794778 Roundhay

P
age 29

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773758
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-119643340
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455660
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-111200339
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1070838441


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

29 Jan. 2016 Osman House
(LS15 4BT)

Rehabilitation 
(Residential Care) Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-471078901 Harewood

1 Feb. 2016 Moorcare 
(LS17 6FD) Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-387245409 Moortown

Ark Home Healthcare 
Leeds (LS27 9SE) Homecare agency Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2334043401 Morley North

1 Feb. 2016

Champion House - Care 
Home with Nursing 
Physical Disabilities 
(LS28 5QP)

Nursing Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-120084728 Calverley & Farsley

1 Feb. 2016 West Yorkshire (LS11 
9RT)

Community Services – 
nursing & homecare 

agency
Inadequate http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-154214570 Beeston & Holbeck

2 Feb. 2016 Cookridge Court (LS16 
6NB) Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-457462588 Weetwood

8 Feb. 2016
Leeds Mencap - The 
Rookery 
LS7 4PD

Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-112967127 Chapel Allerton

9 Feb. 2016 Dolphin Manor
LS26 0UD Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455969 Rothwell

9 Feb. 2016 Knowle Manor 
LS27 8QB Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455555 Morley South

P
age 30

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-471078901
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-387245409
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2334043401
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-120084728
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-154214570
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-457462588
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-112967127
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455969
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136455555


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

10 Feb. 2016
Pennington Court 
Nursing Home 
LS11 6TT

Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-119664834 City & Hunslet

12 Feb. 2016 Cranmer Scheme LS17 
5PX Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-115928995 Alwoodley

12 Feb. 2016
Halcyon Court Care 
Home 
LS6 2EZ

Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126240575 Hyde Park & 
Woodhouse

13 Feb. 2016 ILS24 Health Care LS9 
6TA Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1736557138 Burmantofts & 

Richmond Hill

15 Feb. 2016 Park Lodge 
LS8 2JH Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-305225538 Roundhay

16 Feb. 2016 Dolphin Lane 
WF3 3DN Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890642 Ardsley & Robin Hood

18 Feb. 2016 Bywater Hall 
WF10 2DY Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-122290171 Kippax & Methley

19 Feb. 2016
Creative Support - Leeds 
Service (Brandling 
Court) LS10 3TQ

Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-897700083 Middleton Park

24 Feb. 2016 Ravensdale 
LS14 2DA Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-144243799 Cross Gates & 

Whinmoor

P
age 31

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-119664834
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-115928995
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126240575
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1736557138
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-305225538
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890642
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-122290171
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-897700083
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-144243799


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

24 Feb. 2016 Assisi Place
LS10 2PD

Homecare agency
Supported Housing

Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-397672324 City & Hunslet

24 Feb. 2016
Caring Hearts and 
Hands 
LS18 5ND

Homecare agency Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-422009787 Horsforth

25 Feb. 2016 Woodhouse Hall 
WF3 2JS Residential Care Inadequate http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890705 Ardsley & Robin Hood

26 Feb. 2016 Connections Care Ltd 
LS10 4HY Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2210765181 Middleton Park

29 Feb. 2016 Bywater Lodge 
WF10 2DY Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-122290187 Kippax & Methley

1 Mar. 2016
Creative Support Leeds 
Service
LS16 7NJ

Homecare agency Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-270560779 Adel & Wharfedale

3 Mar. 2016
St Anne's Community 
Services - Cardigan Road 
LS6 3BJ

Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773324 Headingley

3 Mar. 2016 The Tooth Spa
(LS7 3LW) Dental Practice Dental 

compliant http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1649167076 Chapel Allerton

3 Mar. 2016 Toothpassion 
(LS1 6JS) Dental Practice Dental 

compliant http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-188338495 City & Hunslet

3 Mar. 2016 Shakespeare Medical 
Practice GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1765683369 Burmantofts & 

Richmond Hill

P
age 32

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-397672324
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-422009787
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890705
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2210765181
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-122290187
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-270560779
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-121773324
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1649167076
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-188338495
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1765683369


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

4 Mar. 2016 Symons House
LS2 8DD Homecare agency Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1890573252 City & Hunslet

7 Mar. 2016 Sunnyview House
LS11 8QB Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136312908 Beeston & Holbeck

7 Mar. 2016 Daisy Vale House
WF3 3DS Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890597 Ardsley & Robin Hood

8 Mar. 2016 Aberford Hall 
LS8 2QU Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-320778084 Roundhay

8 Mar. 2016 Jays Homecare Limited
LS15 8ET Homecare agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2246997768 Cross Gates & 

Whinmoor

10 Mar. 2016
United Response - 2a St 
Alban's Close
LS9 6LE

Residential Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-123018728 Burmantofts & 

Richmond Hill

12 Mar. 2016 Cranmer Court
LS17 5LD Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2055723863 Alwoodley

12 Mar. 2016 The Hollies
LS25 1NW Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-111148821 Garforth & Swillington

17 Mar. 2016
Alexandra Court 
Residential Home 
LS16 5BB

Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-281226875 Kirkstall

17 Mar. 2016
Garforth Medical 
Practice
LS25 1HB

GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-561124835 Garforth & Swillington

17 Mar. 2016 Shafton Lane Surgery
LS11 9RE GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-569729598 Beeston & Holbeck

17 Mar. 2016 The Family Doctors
LS15 8NN GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-605099777 Temple Newsam

P
age 33

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-1890573252
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-136312908
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890597
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-320778084
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2246997768
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-123018728
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-2055723863
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-111148821


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

17 Mar. 2016
The Practice Lincoln 
Green
LS9 7TA

GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-626549108 Burmantofts & 
Richmond Hill

17 Mar. 2016 Rothwell Dental surgery 
LS26 0DB Dental Practice Dental breach http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-

1430655723#accordion-1 Rothwell

18 Mar. 2016
Atkinson Court Care 
Home
LS9 9EJ

Nursing Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126476576 Burmantofts & 

Richmond Hill

19 Mar. 2016 Kingston Nursing Home 
LS8 1DH Nursing Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-113497035 Roundhay

21 Mar. 2016
Westfield Medical 
Centre
LS7 3EX

GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-1072186149 Chapel Allerton

21 Mar. 2016
Yeadon Tarn Medical 
Practice
LS19 7JN

GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-582105207 Otley & Yeadon

29 Mar. 2016
The Coach House Care 
Home
LS25 1LL

Residential Care Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-118153276 Garforth & Swillington

31 Mar. 2016
Aireborough Family 
Practice
LS19 7JN

GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-546117658 Otley & Yeadon

31 Mar. 2016 Chevin Medical Practice
LS21 1BQ GP Practice Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-559775722  Otley & Yeadon

1 Apr. 2016 Daniel Yorath House
LS25 2HA

Rehabilitation 
residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-134123755 Garforth & Swillington

1 Apr. 2016 Woodhouse Cottage
WF3 2JS Residential Care Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890690 Ardsley & Robin Hood

P
age 34

http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-1430655723#accordion-1
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-1430655723#accordion-1
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126476576
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-113497035
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-118153276
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-559775722
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-134123755
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-130890690


APPENDIX 3
Publication Date Organisation Type of provider Outcome Web link to the report Ward

5 Apr. 2016 Tealbeck House
LS21 1RJ Residential Care Requires 

improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126242199 Otley & Yeadon

7 Apr. 2016
Woodview Extra Care 
Housing
LS14 5HU

Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-283352948 Crossgates & 
Whinmoor

8 Apr. 2016
Moorfield House 
Nursing Home
LS17 6HW

Nursing Car Requires 
improvement http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-304652901 Moortown

8 Apr. 2016 Outreach Office
LS6 2DD Homecare Agency Good http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-224415641 Headingley

P
age 35

http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-126242199
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-283352948
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-304652901
http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/1-224415641


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Delivering the Better Lives Strategy in Leeds: Proposed next steps - Draft response to the proposed closure of The Green
	The Green - draft repsonse (redraft)


